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Public Entity’s general information

ACSI Association of Christian Schools International 

AET Adult Education and Training

AFTRA African Forum of Teaching Regulatory 
Authorities

AU African Union

B Ed Bachelor of Education

CAPS Curriculum and Assessment Policy Statement

CEPD Centre for Education Policy Development

CHE Council on Higher Education

CPTD Continuing Professional Teacher Development

CSVR Centre for the Study of Violence and 
Reconciliation

CUT, FS Central University of Technology, Free State 

DBE Department of Basic Education

ECD Early Childhood Development

EI Education International

ELRC Education Labour Relations Council

ETDP-SETA Education and Training Development Practices - 

Sector Education Training Authority

FET Further Education and Training

GCIS Government Communication and Information 
Systems

HEDCOM Heads of Education Department Committee 

HOD Head of Department

HPCSA Health Professions Council of South Africa

HSRC Human Sciences Research Council

IFTRA International Forum of Teaching Regulatory 
Authorities

JPTD Junior Primary Teachers Diploma

NAISA National Alliance of Independent Schools 
Association

NAPTOSA National Professional Teachers organization of 
South Africa

NASGB National Association of School Governing Bodies

NATU National Teachers Union

NPFTED National Policy Framework on Teachers 
Education and Development

NWU North-West University

PEDs Provincial Education Departments

PEU Professional Educators Union

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PGCE Postgraduate Certificate in Education 

PTC Primary Teachers Certificate

PTD Primary Teachers Diploma

SACE South African Council for Educators

SADC Southern Africa Development Community

SADTU South African Democratic Teachers Union

SAOU Suid-Afrikaanse Onderwysunie

SAPA South African Principals’ Association

SAQA South African Qualifications Authority

STD Secondary Teachers Diploma

TUT Tshwane University of Technology

UKZN University of KwaZulu-Natal

VVOB (The) Flemish Association for Development 
Cooperation & Teacher Assistance

WTD World Teachers’ Day

 

LIST of acronyms
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The term of the current Council, which started on 1 August 2013 
comes to an end on 31 July 2017. This is, therefore, a significant 
annual report for the South African Council for Educators (SACE) as it 
coincides with the Council’s mid-term. On behalf of Council, I would 
like to assure all our stakeholders that the Council is getting stronger 
and more effective in the execution of its core mandate of promoting 
professionalism within the teaching profession. .

The achievements of Council during the period under review include: 

•	 A stricter and more efficient registration regime;
•	 A compulsory programme for continuing professional 

development and growth for all teachers in the system;
•	 A streamlined system for addressing alleged breaches of the 

Code of Ethics;
•	 Appointment of an expert pool of researchers to guide SACE by 

providing evidence-based advice regarding issues of teacher 
professionalism; and 

•	 A multi-faceted outreach programme using a variety different 
methodologies in order to enhance the delivery of SACE’s areas 
of responsibility. 

Council has improved SACE’s infrastructure needs by:

•	 Acquiring its own premises to save escalating rental costs;
•	 Securing SACE branch offices in Bloemfontein and Durban, as 

part of a nine province plan, to take service delivery to local 
levels; and 

•	 Expanding its staff complement to maximise delivery and output.

Council has marked its footprint internationally as a founding and 
leading member of the International Forum for Teacher Regulatory 
Authorities (IFTRA), which consists of participants from 18 countries. 
Within the African continent, SACE is currently the chair of the 
African Forum for Teacher Regulatory Authorities (AFTRA), which 
is responsible for promoting professionalism and well-being of 
teachers in at least 20 African countries. Moreover, SACE participates 
in Education International (EI) as a valued observer.

It is our honour to report that Council has worked diligently to 
build on the good work of the previous Councils. It has enriched 
policies to ensure better service delivery and office performance.

Notwithstanding the above milestones, SACE has had its fair 
share of challenges, which are by no means peculiar to SACE as a 
public entity. They include the following: 

•	 While SACE is grateful to government for the financial support it 
receives every year, the expanded mandate of SACE during this 
period was not commensurate with its financial capacity;

•	 There still remains in some sections of South African society a lack 
of understanding of the real business and role of SACE; and

•	 There have been discernible tensions between the notion that 
SACE needs to be externally managed and supervised, on the 
one hand, and the need for SACE to maintain its autonomy as do 
similar councils nationally and internationally, on the other. 

FOREWORD BY THE 
CHAIRPERSON

MS Veronica Hofmeester
Chairperson
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____________________________ 
Veronica Hofmeester 

Chairperson - SACE 

31 March 2015

These hurdles will be addressed in the remaining half of our term 
of office. Broader challenges that have to be addressed collectively 
include:

•	 The growing marketization, commodification and 
commercialisation of education;

•	 The professionalisation of the teaching fraternity;
•	 Weak systemic approaches to teacher appreciation, well-being 

and support; and
•	 Inadequate holistic development of learners.

In conclusion, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to:
 
•	 The Ministry and Departments of Education and to all educational 

stakeholders for their commitment to teacher professionalism;
•	 The CEO, assisted by the SACE staff, for his sincere efforts in 

implementing the mandate of SACE; and
•	 The SACE council members for their passion in ensuring that 

every child in the country is taught by professionals who display 
good ethical standards and are able to deliver quality education.
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1. General

SACE promotes the constitutional rights and safety of all residents 
of South Africa generally, and of teachers and learners in particular. 
It denounces victimization and attacks, wherever they occur. 
SACE, therefore, calls on all teachers, learners and residents to 
promote peace and inclusivity. It requests school communities to 
urgently report to SACE instances of victimization, harassment or 
discrimination involving teachers or learners. 

I offer SACE’s apology and sympathy to the citizens of those countries 
that have suffered casualties in the recent spate of xenophobic 
violence that has bedevilled our land. We assure our African brothers 
and sisters that we shall do all in our power to eradicate this scourge. 
We are calling on our teachers, especially, to preach care, good 
neighbourliness and non-violence. We join political parties and civic 
organisations in the march against xenophobia. SACE commends the 
government on measures taken in this regard.

As a council for teachers, we call on all teachers to learn and teach 
the anthems of the African Union (AU) and our country. Let us all sing 
these anthems, side by side, to celebrate our oneness.

2. Registration

Council registered 29 483 educators during the year under review 
and updated 39 296 registrations. Council also finalised electronic 
registration processes, the categorisation of the register and the 
differentiation of certificates. Council has also agreed to initiate 
stringent vetting and verification processes to ensure that all 
teachers, new applicants and those in practice, are in good standing 

and in possession of authentic qualifications. SACE invites the public 
to contact the office to check on the validity of the registration 
credentials of any teacher.

3. Code of Ethics

Council is concerned about the persistent violence in schools. 
Corporal punishment, assaults, racism and sexual abuse constitute a 
blight in the teaching profession, and must be eradicated.

SACE maximised its vigilance regarding adherence to the Code of 
Ethics for Teachers. Of 586 complaints received during the year under 
review and 283 from the previous year, 647 were processed and 222 
carried over to the next financial year. 69 hearings resulted in 56 
educators being found guilty of which 28 had suspended “striking 
offs’, 18 definite period striking offs’ and 10 indefinite striking offs’.” 
Most of the offences related to corporal punishment, harassment and 
sexual misconduct (in that order).

Council also investigated schools where complaints were received 
regarding the “selling of promotion posts”. To date, the investigations 
which have been completed in most parts of the country have not 
produced any evidence or witnesses that would enable SACE to 
prosecute cases against educators for dishonest practices. However, 
some teachers are being followed up for other misdemeanours. The 
promotion system, it seems, may have to be strengthened to avoid 
manipulation and exploitation. Nevertheless, the public is implored 
to forward information alleging unprofessional conduct of teachers 
to SACE. The Council has agreed to appoint full-time investigators 
and to increase the number of suitably qualified panellists so as to 
conclude cases speedily.

CHIEF  executive officer’s 
overview

Mr Rej Brijraj
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
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4. Professional Development

SACE requires all teachers up to the level of school principals 
to engage in SACE approved Continuing Professional Teacher 
Development (CPTD) programmes and activities. All educators are 
expected to accumulate 150 CPTD points in three-year cycles. The 
cycle for school principals and deputy principals began in 2014, 
followed by the one for Heads of Departments (HoDs) this year. In 
2016 and 2017, SACE will commence the CPTD cycle for secondary 
school teachers and primary school teachers respectively. SACE calls 
upon all educators to comply with this requirement by engaging in 
life-long professional development programmes and activities as per 
Council guidelines, and record such progress for reference.

SACE has approved 113 CPTD providers and endorsed 463 
programmes. Exemption is granted to certain categories of 
providers. The Council is paying special attention to inclusivity, 
languages, history, mathematics and science teaching. It emphasises 
the promotion of attitudes and values consistent with the South 
African Constitution and Bill of Rights and the holistic development 
of learners. Council is busy finalising professional standards and 
designations.

SACE now has a fully-fledged research unit providing findings 
and recommendations regarding teacher professionalisation and 
pertinent educational issues.

5. Stakeholder Relations

SACE’s national stakeholders include the unions, DBE and other 
educational organisations. In the past financial year (2014/15), 
SACE was able to reach educators and final year student educators 
at different universities in most of the provinces of South Africa. In 
addition, SACE  participated in a number of national and international 
stakeholder events, and had engagements that were aimed at 
streamlining and ensuring the efficient functioning of SACE.

5.1  National Stakeholders

•	 Public Relations: As part of ongoing support to schools, SACE 
visited Sinqobile Primary School in Soshanguve during the first 
day of schools opening in January 2015. SACE promotional 
material were distributed and presentation on Code 015 
Professional Ethics was done.

•	 The SACE office organised two parallel outreach activities in the 
two districts of the North-West province, namely Ngaka Modiri 
Molema and Dr Kenneth Kaunda, in collaboration with the North-
West Department of Education. The events were able to reach 
1400 educators..

•	 SACE successfully organised an outreach in Motheo District, 
Botshabelo, Free State, and a total of 800 educators were reached.

Please see tables on the next page indicating stakeholders that SACE
interacted with during the reporting period.
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Date Venue Activity Province Attendance

26 August 2014 Newcastle Launch of Teacher Devel-
opment Institute

KwaZulu-Natal 700

South African Democratic Teachers Union (SADTU)

Date Venue Activity Province Attendance

27 - 29 June 2014 Bloemfontein Triennial Provincial Con-
ference

Free State  360

14 August 2014 Tzaneen Women’s Day Celebration Limpopo  500

19 - 20 August 2014 Mayflower & Ermelo Civic 
Centre

Capacity Building Work-
shop

Mpumalanga 1300

12 September 2014 Bester Hall Labour Seminar KwaZulu-Natal 500

02-05 October 2014 Boksburg National Congress Gauteng 450

09 March 2015 Swanepoel Stadium, 
Ermelo

Education Workers’ 
Forum

Mpumalanga 3000

National Professional Teachers Organization of South Africa (NAPTOSA)

Date Venue Activity Province Attendance

16 August 2014 Polokwane Annual Conference Limpopo 400

8-10 August 2014 NMMU Campus (PE) Provincial Conference Eastern Cape 450

Professional Educators Union (PEU)

Date Venue Activity Province Attendance

15 March 2014 Hammanskraal General Executive Council Gauteng 350

13 March 2015 Pretoria Annual Conference Gauteng 600

5.3 Provincial Departments of Education

Date Venue Activity Province Attendance

25 April 2014 Mmabatho Convention 
Centre

Le Bolotse Letsema 
Campaign

North-West 190

05 March 2014 Crescent Girls’  High Annual General Work-
shop for Independent 
Schools

KwaZulu-Natal 300

04 September 2014 Emalahleni Civic Centre Teachers Call Initiative Mpumalanga 1500

01 October 2014 Edendale Circuit World Teachers’ Day 
Celebration

KwaZulu-Natal 150

02 October 2014 Plessislaer FET Campus World Teachers’ Day 
Celebration

KwaZulu-Natal 200

17 October 2014 Zeerust World Teacher’s Day 
Celebration

North-West 350

24 February 2015 NW Department of 
Education

Presentation about SACE North-West 200

08 March 2015 SA Congress for Early 
Childhood Development

Registration of educators North-West 180

5.2 National Organised Teaching Profession

National Teachers Union (NATU)
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5.4 Other Stakeholders:

South African Principals Association (SAPA)

Date Venue Activity Province Attendance

05 - 06 June 2014 Polokwane Annual Capricorn District 
Conference

Limpopo 230

01 August 2014 Louis Trichardt Vhembe District SAPA 
Conference

Limpopo 200

07 October 2014 Polokwane National Conference Limpopo 450

Governing Bodies Associations

Governing Body Venue Date Attendance 

National Association of School 
Governing Bodies (NASGB)

Dominican Special School 12 April 2014 130

Universities

Institution Venue Date Attendance

Tshwane University of Technol-
ogy (TUT)

Akasia Hall 13 March 2014 360

North-West University (NWU) Vaal Campus 26 May 2014 180

Central University of Technology, 
Free State (CUT, FS)

Welkom 4 - 5 August 2014 180

University of KwaZulu-Natal 
(UKZN)

Edgewood Campus 2 - 3 October 2014 650

SACE was able to convene broad stakeholder forums with the national/provincial leadership of unions and other statutory bodies on the 
following dates:

Stakeholders Date

ACSI (Limpopo Educators Conference) 30 - 31 May 2014

Motheo Training Institute Trust 02 October 2014

SADTU Western Cape 17 February 2015

NAPTOSA 17 February 2015

SAOU 17 February 2015

5.5 International Stakeholders

SACE is the affiliate member of the African Forum for Teacher 
Regulatory Authorities (AFTRA) on the continent, and South Africa 
is the only country in the SADC region which has a fully established 
and operational council for teachers. The Council chairs this Forum, 
and has been tasked with ensuring that all African countries establish 
similar organisations with the sole purpose of enhancing the quality 
of teaching and learning in Africa. The SACE CEO is current President 
of AFTRA. In addition, SACE is also affiliated to the International 
Forum for Teacher Regulatory Authorities (IFTRA).

During the period under review, we participated in and facilitated the 
following programmes in carrying out our responsibilities as chair of 
AFTRA:

•	 During the month April 2014, SACE hosted the AFTRA Executive 
Board Meeting, which was planning for the AFTRA roundtable. 

•	 SACE attended the IFTRA Conference in Toronto, Canada.
•	 A meeting was held with the Swaziland Ministry of Education 

in Swaziland. Some of the milestones that the meeting arrived 
included the cementing of relations between South Africa and 
Swaziland. In addition, an agreement was reached for SACE to 
assist Swaziland with the establishment of a teaching council. 
In addition, liaison offices between South Africa and Swaziland 
in dealing with the verification processes in relation to teachers’ 
cross-border matters. 

•	 Another meeting was held with the leadership of the Swaziland 
National Association of Teachers (SNAT) and it was agreed that a 
further meeting be convened to help SNAT in the processes of 
council formation. 
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The success of these engagements is very important to AFTRA and 
SACE as the Chair of AFTRA because it signifies SACE’s commitment 
to the course of assisting our African counterparts to establish 
teaching authorities. The establishment of councils in the African 
continent will have a huge impact in the education sector in Africa 
and will also help improving co-operation amongst African countries. 
South Africa stands to benefit more in that we are receiving a huge 
number of teachers from the African continent, and this will make it 
easier for the DBE to employ educators of good standing since we 
shall be able to verify their status with their countries of origin which 
for now is a challenge.

5.6 Media Relations

A series of radio interviews were arranged with more than 10 radio 
stations, i.e. SAFM, Kaya FM, Lesedi FM, Motsweding FM, Ikwekwezi 
FM, Ligwalagwala FM, Bush Radio, Ukhozi FM, Sekhukhune 
Community radio, Rainbow FM, etc. to advocate the role of the 
Council, as well as raise awareness about the services it renders. There 
is no doubt that the use of these indigenous language radio stations 
as a strategic communication platform enabled the organisation to 
consequently reach several millions of listeners. In addition, SACE 
held one media conference on 03 December 2014.

5.7 Teacher Assistant Facility

SACE’s call centre assists educators electronically on all teacher-
related queries.

6. Administration

To effectively deliver its mandate of enhancing teacher 
professionalism, Council’s resources have been expanded as follows: 

•	 Increase of the staff complement to approximately 200 staff 
members, including officers and officials;

•	 Establishment of provincial offices in the Free State and KwaZulu-
Natal in addition to the head office in Tshwane;

•	 A Teacher assistant facility;
•	 A Research Unit, consisting of a pool of researchers;
•	 A specialized Advocacy and Outreach Division; and 
•	 A R60m budget, including a grant of R9m from the Department 

of Basic Education. 
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____________________________ 
Rej Brijraj 

Chief Executive Officer  

South African Council for Educators (SACE) 

Date: 31 March 2015
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To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report are 

consistent with the annual financial statements audited by the 

external Auditor.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any 

omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the 

guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in 

accordance with the generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

applicable to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the 

annual financial statements and for the judgements made in this 

information.  

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and 

implementing a system of internal control has been designed to 

provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the 

performance information, the human resources information and the 

annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 

opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the 

performance information, the human resources information and the 

financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 

March 2015.

Yours faithfully 

Statement of responsibility and confirmation of accuracy for the 
annual report

_____________________________ 
Chief Executive Officer
Name: Mr Rej Brijraj
Date: 31 March 2015

____________________________ 
Chairperson of the Council
Name: Veronica Hofmeester
Date: 31 March 2015
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1. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

Legislative mandates	 				  
	
The South African Council for Educators Act (Act No 31 of 2000)

Is formulated: 

To provide for the continued existence of the South African Council 
for Educators, to provide for composition of Council, to provide for 
the functions of the said council, to register educators, to promote 
professional development and to enforce compliance with the Code 
of Professional Ethics, and the rules and the regulations for incidental 
matters thereto. 

The Basic Education Laws Amendment Act (BELA) (Act No 15 of 
2011) is formulated:

•	 To provide for the management of Continuing Professional 
Teacher Development (CPTD) system; and         

•	 To enable state funds as an additional revenue source.

The Employment of Educators Act (1998) 

The Employment of Educators Act 1998 Section 15 (2) directs that if 
the name of an Educator is struck off the register of educators kept 
by The South African Council for Educators (SACE), the Educator 
shall, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 
Act, be deemed to have resigned with effect from the day following 
immediately after the day on which the Educator’s name was struck 
off the register.

Section 26(2) directs that in each case where steps were taken against 
any educator under Section 24 (2), other than the cautioning or 
reprimanding of the Educator, the Employer shall furnish The South 
African Council for Educators with the record of the proceedings at 
the inquiry and all other documents relating thereto.

Policy Mandates 

•	 Section 5(b) of the SACE Act No.31 of 2000 as amended by the 
BELA Act (2011) affirms SACE’s  functions as:

	 –	 Promoting the image and status of the teaching profession;
	 –	 Managing a system for Continuing Professional 			

	 Development for all teachers in schools;
	 –	 Developing Professional Development Policy;
	 –	 Producing professional journal;
	 –	 Playing an advisory role; and 
	 –	 Managing the CPTD Management System.

The South African Council for Educators is accountable to the 
Department of Basic Education (DBE) and fits into sub-output 
number one of DBE Delivery Agreement and Action Plan 2014, which 
speaks to “improving the quality of teaching and learning” through 
the improvement of teacher capacity and practices.

2. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

1.1 Vision 

Our vision is to promote professionalism amongst all educators in South 

Africa, by ensuring that our services are easily accessible, continuously 

empowering through development, ensuring commitment to the 

profession and adherence to the ethos of education as enshrined in 

the South African constitution. 

1.2 Mission

SACE shall strive to ensure that the education system is enriched, 

by providing properly registered and professionally developed 

educators that would display professionalism.

1.3 Values

Core Values/Principles of the South African Council for Educators

Service-oriented Ensure that the teaching profession in general and educators in particular are serviced satisfactorily at all 
times. Servicing educators is priority number one for all SACE employees.

Quality Provide quality and excellent service to educators and the profession as a whole.

Openness and transparency All SACE matters should be treated with honesty and sincerity. SACE will strive to engage and consult 
with its stakeholders on various matters regularly.

Professionalism Display high level of professionalism at all times.



16

ANNUAL REPORT 2014  |  2015

COUNCIL
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PART B: Performance Information
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In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act 
No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, we 
have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance 
information against predetermined objectives for the selected 
programmes presented in the annual report, compliance with 
legislation and internal control. We performed tests to identify 
reportable findings as described under each subheading, but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
following selected programmes presented in the annual performance 
report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2015: 

•	 Programme 1: Registration of Educators on pages 20 to 22
•	 Programme 2: Professional Development of Educators on pages 

28 to 52
•	 Programme 4: Professional Ethics on pages 22 to 28

We evaluated the reported performance information against the 
overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

We evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information 
to determine whether it was presented in accordance with the 
National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the 
reported performance was consistent with the planned programmes. 
We further performed tests to determine whether indicators and 
targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for 
managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

We assessed the reliability of the reported performance information 
to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

We did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and 
reliability of the reported performance information for the following 
programmes:

•	 Programme 1: Registration of Educators on pages 20 to 22
•	 Programme 2: Professional Development of Educators on pages 

28 to 52
•	 Programme 4: Professional Ethics on pages 22 to 28

Additional matters

We draw attention to the following matter. Our conclusion is not 
modified in respect of these matters:

Achievement of planned targets

Refer to the annual performance report on pages 20 to 52 for 
information on the achievement of the planned targets for the year.

Compliance with legislation

We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity 

had complied with legislation regarding financial matters, financial 
management and other related matters. Our findings on material 
compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 
general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statements

The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared 
in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework 
as required by section 55(1) (b) of the Public Finance Management 
Act. Material misstatements of provision, trade and other receivables 
identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were 
subsequently corrected.

Procurement and Contract Management

Quotations were awarded to bidders who did not submit a 
declaration on whether they are employed by the state or connected 
to any person employed by the state, which is prescribed in order to 
comply with Treasury Regulation 16A8.3.

Internal control

We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements, annual performance report and compliance with 
legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant 
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for our opinion, 
the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on 
compliance with legislation included in this report. 

Leadership

Although the leadership implemented controls to ensure 
compliance with laws, regulations and internally designed policies 
and procedures, non-compliance issues were noted and material 
misstatements were identified and corrected. 

Financial and performance management

Management did not adequately monitor adherence with the 
requirements of Treasury Regulations for deviations from Supply 
Chain Management processes. Management did not adequately 
review the financial statements and the annual performance report 
for completeness and accuracy prior to its submission for audit 
purposes. Misstatements identified were subsequently corrected by 
management.

_______________________________
Nexia SAB&T
Per: P. Mkumbuzi
Director
Registered auditor
31 July 2015

1.	AUDITOR’S REPORT PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES  
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2.1. Service Delivery Environment

Teachers are the prime beneficiaries of SACE services. The secondary 
beneficiaries are members of the public, who want to see the teaching 
profession serving the best interests of the learners.

The teaching fraternity and the public at large continue to welcome 
all SACE interventions and services. There is a demand for more 
outreach. The teacher unions, Ministry, departments and other 
educational stakeholders and entities have received service and 
supported SACE well, again.

SACE has not experienced any hostility from any quarter. SACE is 
constrained by its revenue base and will have to review its funding 
model if it is to deliver as per demand and in accordance with its 
mandate. However, there is more pressure regarding SACE’s visibility 
and impact. There is growing opinion that SACE must take charge of 
the profession.

2.2. Organisational environment 

SACE has put in place various strategies to fast-track the turnaround 
time on educator misconduct cases. A more streamlined approach 
towards resolution of complaints against educators is being 
implemented, ensuring timeous closure, correction, rehabilitation 
and remedy, where appropriate. Communication and outreach have 
expanded.

The Council is now forging good relations nationally and 
internationally. It has set a pattern of dialogues with national 
stakeholder groupings, viz. teacher unions, Department of Basic 
Education, statutory organs, media groupings and providers. On 
the international front, Council Chaired the Steering Committee for 
African Teaching Regulatory Authorities (AFTRA). An International 
Federation of Teaching Regulatory Authorities (IFTRA) conference 
took place in November 2014 in Toronto. The Council continues to 
forge relationships with other Southern African stakeholders to 
influence the establishment of similar professional councils, and has 
succeeded in Namibia and Botswana.

2.3. Key policy developments and legislative changes

During the year, no legislation or policy change which might have 
had a major change in the operation of Council, has taken place.

2.4. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals

SACE lagged behind in fulfilling its Strategic objectives Annual 
Performance Plan targets in areas. Council did not complete 
processing a satisfactory number of cases as indicated in the CEO’s 
overview. This created the need to carry forward a substantial 
number of cases to the next financial period. The budget difficulties 
hampering the process have been resolved.

Council research initiatives were inward looking. Council has agreed 
to re – prioritize   more relevant research informing the specific status 
quo of teachers in schools in particular and the profession generally. 
Recommendations regarding the needs of the profession are to be 
formulated, based on an analysis of the credentials and deployment 
of all practising educators.

2.	SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
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Key Performance 
Indicator

Actual 
Achievement 
2013/2014

Planned Target
2014/2015

Actual 
Achievement
2014/2015

Deviation 
form planned 
target to actual 
achievement 
2014/2015

Comment on 
deviations

Number of Registered 
educators

25 314 26 000 29 483 3 483 above target More than 
predicted number

Number of registration 
documents updated

30 517 25 000 39 296 14 296 above target More updates were 
processed than 
anticipated.

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY
     PROGRAMMES
3.1. REGISTRATION

Purpose:

The purpose of the programme is to register educators who satisfy 
registration requirements, compile and maintain a sub-register 
of educators who are provisionally registered and maintain and 
sustain the credibility of the educator database.

Strategic Objective:

To register all qualified educators

•	 The registration mandate was performed with vigour in this 
financial year. Qualified educators who applied and met 
requirements were registered speedily.

•	 The division saw a huge increase in the number of educators 
coming to register for the first time. Whilst the anticipated 
number was 26 000, the actual came to 29 483. New educators 
include foreign nationals and educators who only have academic 
qualifications but employed by the schools for specific reasons.

•	 A large percentage of the newly registered are registered 
provisionally. This is due to the fact that they do not qualify for 
full registration.

To update registration status of educators

•	 With regard to those educators that needed to update their 
registration status for the financial year, SACE anticipated 20 000 
but had to process requests from 39 296 educators, of which 9 768 
were foreign educators.

•	 Student educators in their final year of study are registered 
provisionally so as to assist them to start preparing for their 
employment as soon as they are qualified. This practice of 
registering student educators at higher education institutions 
entailed induction on ethics and professionalism in the work 
place. The students were also informed about the CPTD system. 
Upon submission of their qualifications, they then get full 
registration.  

	 Early Childhood Development: ECD educators are now 
accorded provisional registration valid for three years.  With this 
sector we accord provisional registration status to educators with 
the minimum NQF level 4 qualifications. (ECD)

•	 B Ed students: Council directed that B Ed students be registered 

from their second year when studying full-time.  They would 
need to renew their registration status annually so as to ensure 
that they do study a complete their studies. 

•	 Conditional Registration 

	 Some schools employ educators with academic qualifications 
only in cases where suitably qualified educators are not available. 
Council took a resolution to accord these educators conditional 
registration for a period of three years attaching them to the 
schools that have employed them. These schools need to provide 
a motivational letter signed by the Principal and Chairperson of 
the School Governing Body stating reasons for the employment 
of an under-qualified person. 

•	 Foreign Educators

	 All foreign educators teaching in the country are accorded a 
Provisional registration status, for a period of 5 years or up to the 
expiry date on their work permits, as stipulated by Council.

•	 Waldorf and Montessori Schools 

	 SACE accords a three (3) year renewable registration status to 
Waldorf & Montessori educators. They are bound to teach in 
Waldorf and Montessori schools respectively.

•	 Therapists

	 Therapists are registered as per the recommendation of the 
employer. The current HPCSA registration is a requirement. They 
will be attached to the schools that have recommended them for 
registration; the same applies to nurses, and social workers. 

•	 Adult Education and Training (AET) Educators

	 AET educators having an Adult Basic Education and Training 
(ABET) certificate are registered for a period of one year whilst 
pursuing their studies. 
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Commentary on Performance of Objectives

•	 For the current year, the division performed above target 
because of the unpredicted demands.

•	 Most registration application forms are processed within 7 
working days once received by the office.

•	 Delays when they occur are because of postal circumstances.
•	 Office makes special arrangements for when such emergencies 

arise. 

Registrations

Below is a schedule of the outreach programmes 2014-2015 in 
collaboration with the Communication division.

Date Place Reprints of 
certificates

New Full Reg-
istration

Provisional Prov Ext Updates Total

09-11 April 
2014

King William-
stown 

24 34 3 2 21 84

12-15 May 
2014

North-West 0 0 11 0 0 11

21-23 May 
2014

Grahamstown 14 15 20 8 11 68

08-10 Aug 
2014

PE- NAPTOSA  33 1 0 0 6 40

12-15 August 
2014

Free State 22 0 1 0 3 26

12 September 
2014

Durban, Inanda 87 12 39 2 102 242

17-19 Septem-
ber 2014

Empangeni/ 
NATO Confer-
ence

399 80 70 10 163 722

21 March 2015 Zeerust ECD
Conference 

0 37 0 16 0 53

Totals  1 246

Outreach to Universities

Date Place Reprints of 
certificates

New Full Reg-
istration

Provisional Prov Ext Updates Total

05 September 
2014

Turfloop Uni-
versity

0 0 361 0 3 364

01-03 October 
2014

University of 
KZN

65 6 420 15 32 538

24 October 
2014

Wits University 0 0 291 0 0 291

14 March 2015 Vaal University 
of Technology

0 0 155 0 2 157

1 350

Strategies to overcome areas of under performance

•	 An up-to-date database system;
•	 SACE to sensitise schools to ensure that educators are registered 

before employment;

•	 To communicate with governing bodies especially in 
Independent and Private schools to ensure that they employ 
qualified and registered educators.
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Changes to planned targets

No changes were made to the planned targets.

2014/2015 2013/2014

Programme/ac-
tivity/objective

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Registration 1,500 394 1,106 370 296 74  

Total 1.500 394          1,106 370 296 74  

3.2. PROFESSIONAL ETHICS

Purpose:

The aim of the programme is to promote ethical conduct among 
educators and stakeholders through workshops, seminars, imbizos 
and the distribution of material that sets the standard of professional 
conduct and to render support to schools, educators and stakeholders 
on ethical matters.

Strategic objectives

Case management

Every complaint that the Council receives is investigated either 
telephonically, by written correspondence or by conducting a 
physical investigation at a school. As soon as the investigation is 
completed, a report with recommendations is then presented to the 
Ethics Committee for its consideration and direction on how such a 
complaint should be dealt with. The Committee may recommend 
that an educator be charged, that a complaint be referred to a 
relevant authority, that a matter be mediated upon, or that an 
advisory letter be forwarded to the alleged perpetrator. Should the 
Ethics Committee recommend that charges be levelled against an 
educator, summons are issued against the educator and a hearing 
gets scheduled to take place, at least within a three months period.

Most of SACE’s disciplinary hearings take the form of peer 
adjudication. This means that other educators serve as presiding 
officers and panellists and pass judgment on their fellow educators 
accused of breaching the Code of Professional Ethics. Our panel 
members are trained on issues of law, disciplinary procedures and 
various other legal processes to enable them to effectively carry out 
these duties. SACE endeavours to up-skill them on an annual basis. 

A total number of 586 complaints were received during the review 
period as compared to 650 that the division had anticipated to 
receive. We have, however, noted that the trends still remain the same 
as in the previous reporting period. The year has witnessed a slight 
increase in the number of corporal punishment cases, sexual abuse of 
male and female learners, (both inside and outside school premises), 
assault of colleagues within the school environment, submission of 
fraudulent qualifications and other forms of unprofessional conduct 
by educators. Council will have to double its advocacy efforts to 
address these breaches to curb future occurrences.

The SACE Act, (Act No. 31 of 2000) requires that the division responsible 
for professional ethics should review the SACE Code of Professional 
Ethics for educators on an annual basis. This was accordingly done. 
Council also reviewed its disciplinary procedures in an attempt to 
close loopholes that previously existed and to shorten turn-around 
times allocated to deal with and finalize cases.

Workshops on SACE including the Code of Professional Ethics

As with the previous years, the division has conducted several 
workshops for educators in an attempt to conscientise them on the 
requirements of SACE and the Code of Professional Ethics.

Workshops were conducted for first year students at the North-West 
University’s Vanderbijlpark campus on the code of professional ethics 
with a stronger emphasis on sexual harassment. Final year B Ed and 
PGCE students at the same University were also addressed, focusing 
more on the Code of Professional Ethics. Students at University of 
KwaZulu-Natal (UKZN), University of Zululand, Tshwane University of 
Technology (TUT) and the Central University of Technology Free State 
(CUT, FS) were also addressed on the Code of Professional Ethics. 

Workshops were conducted for in-service and pre-service educators, 
mostly focused on corporal punishment and sexual abuse of both 
learners and colleagues. These also served to alert pre-service 
educators about professional conduct generally. 

It was evident that many educators who are still applying corporal 
punishment need urgent professional development on alternative 
forms of discipline to promote positive behavior. 
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Programme Name 

ETHICS

Key Performance 

indicators

Actual Achievement

2013/2014

Planned Target

2014/2015

Actual Achievement

2014/2015

Deviation 

from planned 

target to actual 

achievement 

for 2014/2015

Comment on 

deviations

Number of concluded 

cases as measured 

against the number of 

cases received for the 

year. 

Actual number of 

cases finalised

340

Expected number 

of cases to be 

finalised including 

the 283 carried 

over from 2013

869

Actual number 

of cases finalised 

including those 

carried over from 

2013

647

While it was 

expected that 

a total of 869 

cases would 

be finalised, a 

total number of 

647 cases were 

actually finalised

A total of 222 

cases could not be 

finalised and would 

be carried over into 

the next financial 

year. More officials 

trained to achieve 

80% forecast.

Educators and 

stakeholders to be 

workshopped on the 

code of professional 

ethics

Actual number 

of educators and 

stakeholders work-

shopped on the code 

of professional ethics:

5747

Expected number 

of educators and 

stakeholders to be 

workshopped on the 

code of professional 

ethics: 

35 000

Actual number 

of educators and 

stakeholders 

workshopped on the 

code of professional 

ethics: 

5786

29 214 

educators and 

stake holders 

could not be 

workshopped 

physically as 

anticipated. 

However; many 

radio interviews 

were conducted 

across the 

various radio 

stations. 

Owing to lack of 

sufficient personnel, 

workshops could 

not be conducted 

physically as 

anticipated. Budget 

allocation to 

increase to reach 

wider audience.

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements
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BREAKDOWN OF CASES RECEIVED FROM 01 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 
Total number of complaints received from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015	 		           

Types of Complaints by Province 
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Total number of complaints received from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015	 		           

Types of Complaints by Province 

BREAKDOWN OF CASES RECEIVED FROM 01 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 
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i) CASES FINALISED IN  FORMS, OTHER THAN DISCIPLINARY 
HEARINGS	

Total number of advisory letters issued and sent to 
educators

267

Total number of cases mediated upon: 22

Total number of cases withdrawn before a hearing 
could be conducted:

38

REFERRALS TO OTHER INSTITUTIONS, i.e.  DBE, ELRC 
AND THE SAPS: 

46

Cases referred to the ELRC 06

Cases referred to the DBE 38

Cases referred to the SAPS 02

Total number of cases finalised in other forms 
other than in a disciplinary hearing: 

373

Total number of cases investigated physically: 198

TOTAL NUMBER OF DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS CON-
DUCTED AND FINALISED        

69

Educators found guilty: 56

Educators found not guilty: 07

Cases withdrawn at the hearing: 06

BREAKDOWN OF SANCTIONS METED OUT TO EDUCA-
TORS FOUND GUILTY

56

Educators struck off indefinitely: 10

Educators struck off but who may re-apply after certain 
periods: 

18

Educators struck off but striking off suspended for a certain 
period, including fines: 

28

TOTAL NUMBER OF APPEALS PROCESSED 04

Number of appeals finalised:   03

Number of appeals postponed: 01

TOTAL NUMBER OF REINSTATEMENT APPLICATIONS 
RECEIVED

04

Total number of reinstatement applications finalised: 04

Total number of reinstatement applications postponed: 00

	
TOTAL NUMBER OF CASES PROCESSED BETWEEN 01 APRIL 
2014 AND 31 MARCH 2015 INCLUDING INVESTIGATIONS, 
DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS, APPEALS AND REINSTATEMENT 
HEARINGS 	 647	

D) Commentary on performance for objectives

Among other responsibilities,, SACE is tasked with the duty of 
upholding the image of the teaching profession, and through this 
division, to ensure that all educators behave ethically. This is done 
by conducting workshops for educators, investigating complaints, 
conducting disciplinary hearings, mediating disputes where 
necessary and intervening in schools to bring peace and stability 
within the schooling environment. The division has, however, not 

been able to do enough of the abovementioned tasks owing to 
capacity constraints.

E) Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

For the period under review, a total of 869 cases were dealt with by 
the Council, of which 647 were finalised as outlined. The 869 cases are 
inclusive of those that were carried over from the 2013/14 financial 
year.

While the division attempted to finalize most complaints received, 
many could still not be finalised owing to lack of sufficient personnel, 
lack of cooperation by witnesses, parents and representatives of the 
accused educators. 

A total of 222 cases has been carried over into the next financial year. 
It is expected that the division might receive up to 700 cases for the 
period 2015/2016. 

SACE aims to achieve this goal and minimize backlog by:

Making use of trained retired educators and other suitable candidates 
in all provinces to investigate complaints, mediate over disputes, and 
serve as panellists; and 

Making use of officers trained by SACE in all provinces to conduct 
workshops and conscientise educators about the code of professional 
ethics on behalf of the Council; and by making use of trained 
specialists to prosecute cases on behalf of Council.

F) Changes to planned targets

No changes were effected to the planned targets.

G) Challenges

The major challenge leading to the non-finalisation of cases is the 
lack of cooperation by the parents of abused learners. 

On many occasions while cases have been reported to the SACE 
by parents, these parents would tend to refuse SACE access to the 
abused learner/s, especially at disciplinary hearings. SACE is then 
left with no option but to withdraw many such serious cases against 
perpetrators owing to the lack of cooperation by parents. This practice 
has impacted negatively on our operations, since many sexual abuse 
cases are being carried over. 

The Council has agreed to follow up all cases that have been 
stalled due to a lack of cooperation. Social development and other 
agencies will be consulted to apply the full might of the law. Parent 
communities will be targeted for intense advocacy. SACE is liaising 
with all provincial Departments of education for exchange of 
information regarding complaints against educators.
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i) CASES FINALISED IN  FORMS, OTHER THAN DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS (continues)

2014/2015 2013/2014

Programme/ac-
tivity/ objective

Budget Actual Expen-
diture

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual Expen-
diture

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Case manage-
ment

3 000 2 094 906 1 020 666 354

Total 3 000 2 094 906 1 020 666 354

 Introduction

The Professional Development and Research has two main 
programmes, namely: 

a.	  the management of the continuing professional development 
of all school-based educators in line with the SACE Act, Act 
No.31 of 2000 as amended by the Basic Education Laws 
Amendment Act of 2011, National Policy Framework on Teacher 
and Development in South Africa (2007), Integrated Strategic 
Planning Framework on Teacher Education and Development 
(2012); and 

b.	 professional research that is based on the SACE research 
agenda, scope and priorities.

Continuing Professional Teacher Development (CPTD) System Programme

In the 2013/14 financial year, SACE signed-up and orientated 
24 305 principals and deputy principals, across the country’s nine 
provinces, in preparation for participation in the CPTD system. 
At the beginning of 2014, the signed-up principals and deputy 
principals started participating in their first year of the three year 
CPTD cycle (2014 – 2016) from January 2014 onwards. A number 
of school visits were conducted to monitor and support these 
principals’ participation in the CPTD system and their professional 
development uptake. 

Furthermore, in January 2014, the process of orientating and 
signing-up Heads of Departments commenced. The HoDs started 
their first year of the three-year CPTD cycle from January 2015 
onwards. On the other hand, principals and deputy principals 
moved into their second year of the three-year CPTD cycle. A 
number of providers were approved and professional development 
activities were endorsed. A catalogue of approved providers and 
endorsed professional development activities was produced as a 
result of these approvals and endorsements.

Purpose of the Professional Development Programme

The aim of the programme is to enhance the quality of the practicing 
educators through the management of the CPTD system, develop 
various strategies and processes of assisting and supporting 
educators with regard to professional matters and needs and 
improve the status and image of the teaching profession.

Strategic Objective of the Professional Development Programme

•	 To enhance the status of the teaching profession. 

3.3      PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
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0

By July 2014, SACE had appointed all nine CPTD Coordinators in all 
provinces of South Africa, and they started implementing the CPTD 
system in collaboration with the CPTD Coordinators in the 9 Provincial 
Education Departments as follows:

•	 Conducted orientations and sign-up workshop sessions for 30 
389 (64.95%) HODs in preparation for their three-year CPTD cycle 
starting from January 2015 onwards;

•	 In the 2013/14 financial year, SACE reported a negative variance of 
16 442 of principals and deputy principals, who were not signed-
up for participation in the CPTD system. By the end of the 2014/15 
financial year, 8 008 out of the 16 444 principals and deputy 
principals were orientated and signed-up for participation in the 
CPTD system. This increased the signed-up principals and deputy 
principals from 24 305 to 32 313 by the end of the period under 
review. The recurring variance of 8 434 principals and deputy 
principals could be attributed largely to the merging of schools, 
retirement and resignations by aging cohort, the imbalance 
between the provinces’ principals and deputy principals post 

basket versus the actual employed people and principals and 
deputy principals who are reluctant to participate in the CPTD 
system due to nearing the retirement age.  The Provincial 
Education Departments are in the process of reconciling these 
numbers; 

•	 Visited 422 (1.6%) schools in the 9 provinces as part of monitoring 
and supporting participation in the CPTD system, including 
monitoring professional development uptake by the principals 
and deputy principals who are in their second year of the three 
year CPTD cycle at the end of the financial year: The table (figure 
1) below shows the number of schools and districts visited per 
province.  The visits were limited to the nearby districts and 
schools due to the delays in the transferring of the CPTD system 
funding; and 

•	 Conducted refresher sessions for 2391 Principals and deputy 
principals who needed support on how to participate in a three-
year CPTD cycle and developing their Professional Development 
Portfolio.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT NARRATIVE
1. Establish SACE presence in the 9 provinces

SCHOOL VISITS FOR MONITORING AND SUPPORT PER PROVINCE AND DISTricT
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•	 The work of the SACE CPTD Provincial Coordinators also involved 
the process of engaging and sharing the CPTD system information 
with the provincial stakeholders – teacher unions, Provincial 
Education Departments, independent school associations, South 
African Principals Association, higher education institutions, 
Provincial Education Labour Relations Council and SGB 
Associations.  This process ensured that the SACE stakeholders 
assist in sharing the CPTD system messages and information 
further to their members and assisting with the orientation and 
sign-up sessions as well. 

•	 SACE has also been represented in the provincial teacher 
education and development committees, where the CPTD system 
presentations were made, and engaging providers of teacher 
development in provinces and advocating the CPTD system in 
the provincial educational gatherings, stakeholder conferences 
and meetings, and regional radio slots.

Figure 1: School Visits per Province
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2. Numbers of educators orientated and signed-up for 
the CPTD System

30 389 (64.95%) school Heads of Departments (HoDs) were 
orientated on the CPTD system and signed-up for participation in 
the system from January 2015 onwards. The HoDs are the second 
cohort for the phased-in implementation of the CPTD system. The 
orientation workshop sessions were conducted by SACE jointly 
with the nine Provincial Education Departments (PEDs) and the 
stakeholders. The following was covered at the workshops:

•	 Unpacking the Teacher Education and Development Legislation 
and Policies within the broader context of the CPTD Management 
System.

•	 Overview of the CPTD Management System.
•	 The Relationship between the CPTD Management System and 

DBE’s IQMS (including the independent schools systems).
•	 Professional Development Portfolio – planning, recording, 

reflecting and reporting participation in the three year CPTD 
cycle.

•	 Administering the HODs needs identification questionnaire.
•	 Manual and electronic sign-up for the CPTD system.

Material developed:

•	 CPTD Orientation Common Slides for PL1 Teachers
•	 CPTD Self-Service Portal Utilisation
•	 PD Points Schedule: How to Allocate PD Points 
•	 Reporting Sheet
•	 Sign-up / Profile Form
•	 Professional Development Portfolio
•	 Needs Identification Questionnaire for PL1 

The table below reflects the number of HODs orientated and signed-
up per by the end on March 2015.

HODs Sign-ups per Province as at 31st March 2015

Province Total Target Variance Variance  

GP 5187 8610 3423 60.24% -39.76%

NW 1721 2937 1216 58.60% -41.40%

LP 4022 5863 1841 68.60% -31.40%

EC 2953 5690 2737 51.90% -48.10%

WC 2400 5000 2600 48.00% -52.00%

MP 3514 4039 525 87.00% -13.00%

KZN 8486 10950 2464 77.50% -22.50%

FS 1655 2720 1065 60.85% -39.15%

NC 451 979 528 46.07% -53.93%

Total 30389 46788 16399 64.95% -35.05%

Figure 2: HODs sign-ups per province

It is also important to highlight the fact that the Western Cape 
continues to be the leading province in terms of utilising the 
CPTD-IS self-service portal maximally. 95.13% of their sign-ups and 
Professional Development Activities and Points reporting are done 
electronically through the CPTD self-service portal. The province 
has also been instrumental in assisting SACE to strengthen its CPTD 
self-service portal due to the ongoing feedback and inputs from the 
principals, deputy principals, HoDs and office-based staff utilizing 
the system on a regular basis.

The manual and electronic sign-up table below (figure 3) indicates 
the year’s electronic and manual sign-up per province. It also shows 

that the Western Cape, North West and Free State utilised the CPTD 
Self-Service Portal effectively during this period. This is also showing 
the extent at which provinces are investing in ICT and utilizing the 
ICT resources for other programmes in the sector. The North West and 
Free State province in particular, are making use of the Department’s 
District Teacher Development Centers (DTDCs) and E-Learning 
Centers for this purpose. On the other hand, provinces such as 
Kwazulu-Natal, Mpumalanga and Limpopo took conscious decisions 
to work on a paper-based system for accountability purposes and 
tracking their sign-ups and orientation processes.
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2. Numbers of educators orientated and signed-up for the CPTD System (Continues)

Province Total Electronic Manuals % Electronic % Manuals

GP 5187 1584 3603 30.54% 69.46%

NW 1721 1275 446 74.08% 25.92%

LP 4022 252 3770 6.27% 93.73%

EC 2953 388 2565 13.14% 86.86%

WC 2400 2283 117 95.13% 4.88%

MP 3514 471 3043 13.40% 86.60%

KZN 8486 410 8076 4.83% 95.17%

FS 1655 1084 571 65.50% 34.50%

NC 451 371 80 82.26% 17.74%

Total 30389 8118 22271 26.71% 73.29%

Figure 3: Manual and Electronic HODs Sign-ups per Province

CPTD Orientation Material 

The following CPTD orientation material were developed and 
distributed to all the HODs in the 9 provinces with the support of the 
nine Provincial Education Departments and Districts:
•	 70 000 HoDs profile and sign-up forms.
•	 70 000 HoDs Questionnaires. 
•	 70 000 HoDs Orientation Booklets with presentation slides, 

Professional Development Portfolio Guidelines and Templates, 
Professional Development Points Schedule, How to sign-up 
electronically and The relationship between IQMS and CPTD 
system.

•	 60 000 CPTD System Handbook (2014 version).

•	 100 000 Brochures on the relationship between IQMS and the 
CPTD system. 

•	 100 000 Brochures on the CPTD system and Electronic sign-ups.

CPTD Capacity Building Sessions

The CPTD Capacity Building Sessions were held for the Provincial 
Education Departments’ office-based educators who are responsible 
for monitoring and supporting teachers. The purpose of these 
sessions is to empower and increase the capacity of people who 
will be able to assist SACE in monitoring and supporting teachers in 
participating in their three year CPTD cycle in schools. The following 
officials were capacitated in various provinces:

PROVINCE OFFICIALS

Eastern Cape District Teacher Development and Curriculum Officials 

Free State Teachers’ Centres Managers and Officials and SMGDLs

Mpumalanga Teachers’ Centres Managers and officials and District Teacher Development officials

Gauteng District Teacher Development Coordinators

Limpopo Curriculum Implementers, District IQMS Coordinators, Circuit Managers 

North West Circuit Managers, District IQMS Coordinators, E-Learning Centres Officials, Teacher Development officials

KwaZulu-Natal District Teacher Development officials

Western Cape District officials – Teacher Development, IQMS, Circuit Managers

3. Number of  Educators Participating in the 1st Three 
Year  Cycle of the CPTD System

The majority of principals and deputy principals are participating 
in various professional development activities offered by their 
employers (9 Provincial Education Departments, Independent 
schools associations and school governing bodies association), 
teacher unions, Higher Education Institutions, private providers 
and non-governmental organisations (NGOs). However, the biggest 
challenge is for the principals and deputy principals to report their 
participation in various professional development activities and 
providers to do the same on their behalf. 

The majority of principals and deputy principals who reported their 
participation in professional development actions focused largely on 

type 1 (teacher initiated) and type 2 (school initiated). This is evident 
in the two tables below (figures 4 and 5). The Western Cape principals 
and deputy principals reported electronically in numbers. 

The majority of principals and deputy principals did not participate in 
the Type 3 (externally initiated) professional development activities 
because of:

•	 Lack of funding for these provider-driven activities.
•	 Time for attending professional development activities.
•	 Private providers need certain minimum numbers before they 

can provide an activity.
•	 The majority of the Provincial Education Departments had not 

submitted programmes for endorsement, and therefore teachers 
were unable to report on them or earn PD points from them.
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Figure 4:The number of Type 1 PD Activities Reported by Principals and Deputy Principals per Province

Type 1 PD Activities Reporting by Principals and Deputy Principals per Province
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The following are the highest reported Type 1 (teacher initiated) Professional
Development activities:

•	 Mentoring and coaching less experienced teachers.
•	 Attending and participating educational meetings / breakfast 

sessions by the Departments of Education, teacher unions, and 
others.

•	 Reading educational material.
•	 Attending and participating in workshops.
•	 Attending and participating in conferences / seminars.
•	 Listening to educational programmes on radio.

Lowest reported type 1 (teacher initiated) PD activities by principals and deputy
principals are as follows:

•	 Full qualifications 
•	 Short courses
•	 Skills programmes
•	 Attending and participating in meetings by Higher Education 

Institutions 
•	 Researching and Development activities
•	 Researching and developing material, presenting a paper, writing 

radio / TV script and others

The table below indicated the levels of reporting type 2 (school initiated) Professional Development activities 
by principals and deputy principals:

Figure 5: The number of type PD Activities reported by Principals and Deputy Principals Per Province
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Strategy to Overcome Areas of Under Performance in Professional 

Development

(a)	 CPTD Orientation and Sign-Up by HODs

•	 SACE and DBE to resolve the funding challenges.
•	 Plans for the HOD mop-up sessions are in place for the provinces 

lagging behind.
•	 Heighten communication and advocacy.
•	 Linkages with the DBE’s SASMS and LURITS 2 on data collection 

and data sharing processes.

(b)	 Number of principals and deputy principals participating in the three year CPTD 
cycle

•	 Teacher support to be strengthened through online support 
material.

•	  Improved monitoring and evaluation processes.
•	 Review the existing reporting processes: Teachers report on 

teacher initiated activities only, schools report on school initiated 
activities and providers / employers report on externally initiated 
activities. A simplified model needs to be developed.

•	 Conduct research on professional development provisioning and 
uptake

(c)	 Provider Approval and Activity/Programme Endorsement

•	 Resolve funding challenges.
•	 Conduct provider capacity research.
•	 Strengthen support for the NOT approved providers and 

providers whose activities are not endorsed.
•	 More provider forum sessions in the provinces.

2014/2015 2013/2014

Programme/ac-
tivity/objective

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Professional 
Development

13 188 10 531 2 657 15 073 10 278 4 795

Total 13 188 10 531 2 657 15 073 10 278 4 795

3.4	 POLICY AND RESEARCH  

Programme Purpose

The aim of the programme is to enhance policy coordination within 
SACE, strengthen the medium and long-term planning that is 
purposeful and informed by data and research. Furthermore, it seeks 
to strengthen the SACE advisory role and services that is informed 
by policy, research, and consultative processes, promote research on 

professional matters and any other educational matter relevant to 
SACE and develop monitoring and evaluations policies, frameworks, 
and instruments for programmes and the implementation of the 
strategic and operational plans.

Strategic Objective 

To provide advice to the Minister and the teaching profession broadly 
on educational matters.
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Strategic Objective (Continues)

2014/2015 2013/2014

Programme/ac-
tivity/objective

Budget Actual Expendi-
ture

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual Expendi-
ture

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Policy and Re-
search

1 000 670 330 250  73 177

Total 1 000 670            330 250 73  177

4. REVENUE COLLECTION 
The Council was able to collect 99, 3% of the budgeted income. Of 
the total revenue collected R13, 2 million was received from the 
Department of Basic Education as subsidy for the Management of 
the Continuous Professional Teacher Development (CPTD) system. 
R10, 5 million in respect of the R13, 2 million CPTD subsidy was spent 
in the current financial year, and the unspent R2, 7 million has been 
deferred to the following financial year.

The main source of funding for Council is subscription fees which 
have remained at R120.00 per member collectable from each active 
member. The other source of funding is registration fees collected 
from registering members at R400.00 for foreign educators and 
R200.00 for South African educators.

5. Capital investment 
The Council had been accommodated in leased buildings since its 
inception. In an effort to cut rental cost the Council took a decision 
to invest an amount of R13, 1 million per annum towards a building 
reserve fund effective from 01 July 2010 for the purpose of acquiring 
its own building.

The Council has purchased the building situated at 240 Lenchen 
Avenue, Centurion for R 60 978 738 through public bidding process. 
The transfer process will be concluded in the following financial year.
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PART C: Governance
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INTRODUCTION 
The South African Council for Educators SACE operates under the 
auspices of the SACE Act (Act No. 31 of 2000) as amended by Basic 
Education Laws Amendment Act (Act No.15 of 2011). It is also 
guided by the compliance provisions of Treasury regulations and the 
prescripts of the Public Finance Management Act as it pertains to 
schedule 3A entities.

Council abides by principles contained in the King’s report on 
Corporate Governance.

Council is accountable to the Minister for Basic Education.

1. PORTFOLIO And Select COMMITTEES 
 
SACE met the Portfolio Committee on Basic Education twice and 
the Select Committee on Basic Education once. Both committees 
enriched the work of SACE by providing valuable insight and critique. 
SACE was urged to enhance its outreach, validate its register, 
accelerate uptake of professional development activities and 
implement professional standards amongst other.

2. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
 
SACE submitted quarterly reports to the Minister of Basic Education 
as required. Council has been empowered by clear guidelines on 
preparation of these reports.

3. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY /   	   	
     BOARD 
Introduction

SACE is a professional council for educators that aims to enhance the 
status of the teaching profession and promote the development of 
educators and their professional conduct. 

 The role of the Council is as follows:

(a) 	with regard to the registration of educators-
•	 must determine minimum criteria and procedures for registration 

or provisional registration;
•	 must consider and decide on any application for registration or 

provisional registration;
•	 must keep a register of the names of all persons who are 

registered or provisionally registered; and
•	 must determine the form and contents of the registers and 

certificates to be kept, maintained or issued in terms of this Act, 

(b)	  with regard to the promotion and development of the 
education and training profession-

•	 must promote, develop and maintain a professional image;
•	 must advise the Minister on matters relating to the education and 

training of educators, 
•	 must research and develop a professional development policy;

•	 must promote h-service training of all educators;
•	 may develop resource materials to initiate and run, in consultation 

with an employer. Training programmes, workshops, seminars 
and short courses that are designed to enhance the profession; 
and

•	 must manage a system for the promotion of the continuing 
professional development of  educators (as amended by Basic 
Education Laws Amendment Act 15 of 2011)

(c) 	 with regard to professional ethics-
•	 must compile, maintain and from time to time review a code of 

professional ethics for 
      	educators who are registered or provisionally registered with the 

council;
•	 must determine a fair hearing procedure;
•	 subject to subparagraph (ii), may-
	 (aa) caution or reprimand;
	 (bb) impose a fine not exceeding one month’s salary on; or
	 (cc) remove from the register for a specified period or indefinitely, 

or subject to specific    conditions, the name of an educator found 
guilty of a breach of the code of professional ethics and

•	 may suspend a sanction imposed under subparagraph (bb) or 
(cc) for a period and on  conditions determined by the council.

(d)	 in general- 

•	 must advise the Minister on any educational aspect.

The Council 

The current Council is in their second year of operation, which started 
on 1 August 2013. The following tables depict the composition of the 
Council and attendance in the year under review. 
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
During the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015, a detailed 
operational risk assessment for the organisation (SACE) was 
conducted. The purpose of the risk assessment was to identify 
business risks related to SACE. The risks were measured and rated in 
terms of impact and the likelihood of occurrence. The risk assessment 
was used to identify risk mitigation plans related to the organisation. 
The assessment identified several high risks items that should be 
addressed by senior management. The mitigation plan includes the 
use of adequate and effective internal and financial controls. 

Strategic Risk Register

SACE maintains a strategic risk register, which contains key risks faced 
by the Council that require the attention of senior management 
or Council. The register is regularly updated and reviewed by the 
Council and the Committee.

Managing Risk

The Council, through the senior management, is responsible for 
the management, and putting in place effective mechanisms to 
ensure that risks are minimised and/or mitigated. Several control 
and financial internal control measures have been implemented as 
recommended by the Internal Audit Division.

5. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT 
Internal Control is a process, effected by the Council, management, 
and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

•	 Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
•	 Reliability of financial reporting; 
•	 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and
•	 Safeguarding of assets.

The Council is responsible for establishing a system of internal control 
and regularly reviewing its effectiveness and relevance. The control 
environment enhances the tone of risk management and provides 
the necessary discipline and structure. It is the foundation for all 
other components of risk management. The control environment 
includes factors, such as the integrity, ethical values, organisational 
culture, competence of people, management’s philosophy and 
operating style, delegation of authority and responsibility, the way in 
which people are organised and developed as well as the intention 
and direction provided by the Council. 

A number of audit findings were identified during the course of the 
year, mainly in the areas of Registration, Continuing Professional 
Teachers Development, follow up on prior year audit findings, 
and other critical areas. All matters have received the attention 
of management and some are partially resolved, while others 
are completely resolved issues. The partially resolved issues are 
monitored by management and reported to the Audit Committee. 

6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT 		    	
     COMMITTEE 
The Council Internal Audit Activity is governed by an internal audit 
charter, which is reviewed and approved annually by the Council and 
the Audit Committee. The charter defines the purpose, authority and 
responsibilities of the Internal Audit Activity.

The Activity has a dual reporting line; reporting functionally to the 
Audit Committee and administratively to the Chief Executive Officer. 
The Internal Audit is responsible for coordinating Internal Audit 
efforts to ensure sufficient coverage and activity’s skills are leveraged 
to maximise efficiency. 

Purpose of Internal Audit

Internal auditing is a catalyst for improving an organisation’s 
governance, risk management and management controls by 
providing insight and recommendations based on analyses and 
assessments of data and business processes. With commitment 
to integrity and accountability, internal auditing provides value 
to the Council and senior management as an objective source of 
independent advice.

Summary of work performed

During the financial year 2014/15, internal audit performed a number 
of engagements from the internal audit plan. The activities for the 
function were based on the results of risk assessment, which are 
continuously updated so as to identify not only residual or existing 
risks, but also emerging risks. The internal audit reviews conducted 
focused on internal control design, financial internal control and 
operating effectiveness for the specific focus areas reviewed.
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Engagement Focus area Progress Stage of completion % Comment

Follow up Registration Previous year audit find-
ings

Final report issued 100% Completed

Follow up Ethics Previous year audit find-
ings

Final report issued 100% Completed

Province and Members 
- CPTD

Sign up - CPTD Final report issued 100% Completed 

Providers and Endorse-
ment - CPTD

Effectiveness of the pro-
cess line 

Final report issued 100% Completed

Policy and Research Monitoring and research 
on teacher development 
needs - CPTD

Final report issued 100% Completed

Communication Outreach and the internal 
control system

Final report issued 100% Completed

Supply Chain Manage-
ment

Purchases cycle Planning 20% Rolled over to 2015/16 
financial year.

The tabled below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members

Name Qualifications Internal or 
external

If internal, 
position in the 
public entity

Date appointed Date Resigned No. of Meetings 
attended

B Snayer BCom Adminis-
tration - Educa-
tion

External August 2013 – to 
date

Four

K Karim BA Degree – Edu-
cation Diploma – 
National Teachers 
Snr Certificate

External August 2013 – To 
date

Three

P White Grade 12 External August 2013 – To 
date

Three

C Ndlazi National Profes-
sional Diploma in 
Education

External August 2013 – To 
date

Two

J. Rustin BA (UWC)
HDE  (UWC)
BED Honours  
(UWC)
Financial man-
agement for non-
financial manag-
ers ( Unisa)
Labour ( NMMU

Internal Councillor August 2013 – To 
date

Two

G.Bengell Grade 12
PTD 3

External November 2013 – 
To date

Two

6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE (Continues)
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7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND 		   	
     REGULATIONS 
The Council has established sub-committees to oversee delivery of 
mandatory functions within the relevant legislations and regulations. 
The committees are:

Executive Committee;
Finance Committee; 
Registration Committee; 
Professional Development Committee; 
Ethics Committee; 
Advocacy Committee; and 
Audit Committee.

These committees formulate policies which guide the operations 
and aid the oversight roles of Council and report progress to the 
Executive Committee on quarterly basis. The policies of Council are 
reviewed annually to ensure consistency with current legislations 
and regulations.

8. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
A fraud-free environment is important to SACE’s efforts for the 
continued delivery of mandatory functions. In line with its zero 
tolerance approach towards fraud, corruption and other economic 
crimes, SACE has recognised that managing fraud risk is imperative 
to the business, and if sustained, effective fraud risk management will 
improve the control environment and enhance SACE’s operational 
performance and reputation. 

As required by Regulation 29.1.1 of the Treasury Regulations 
prescribed under the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 
1 of 1999), during the year under review, SACE developed the fraud 
and corruption management plan. The key focus of the plan was to 
identify fraud risks areas within the ambit of SACE together with the 
related key controls identified to prevent the risks of fraud.

The Council, through its Finance Committee, recommended and 
approved the Fraud Prevention Management Plan for the financial 
year under review.

9. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
  
All Council members are required to declare any possible conflict of 
interest in each meeting as an agenda item. All staff members have to 
complete declaration of interest forms annually to manage possible 
conflict. Any conflicted member is recused from the discussion of the 
conflicted agenda item. 

The Council has a Supply Chain Management Policy and guideline 
which guides the procurement of goods and services. A Supply Chain 
unit under the control of the CFO exists as a central point to process 
all requisitions of Council. Proper segregation of responsibilities 
amongst officers and structures as well as delegation of powers is 

implemented in terms of the Supply Chain Management Policy. 
Members who declare interest are recused from the relevant 
discussion. For the year under review, there was no violation 
identified in this regard.

10. CODE OF CONDUCT 
The Code of Conduct for staff is being reviewed in line with the 
best practices. The need for a review was identified after the 
realisation that the previous Code was constructed along the lines 
of professional ethics, as such, poses some challenges regarding 
implementation. The new Code will endeavour to cover appeal 
procedures, to some detail, not catered for in the previous version and 
distinction between serious violations and minor infringements will 
be expanded upon, providing clarity on misconducts and penalties. 
The principles of corrective action, fairness and consistency will be 
given the necessary attention.

11. HEALTH SAFETY AND 			      	
       ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
The building is a smoke free zone and designated areas have 
been identified for smokers. The safety equipment is checked and 
serviced twice a year. The Council takes issues of health and safety 
in the workplace seriously to this end continuous safety training is 
scheduled to be conducted for safety marshals. The areas on which 
capacity building has been identified are first aid, emergency training 
and health and safety management. 

12. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
1. Introduction

SACE Audit Committee has reviewed and adopted comprehensive 
terms of reference and an outline of such is detailed in the approved 
Audit Committee Charter. The Committee has conducted its work 
over the year and discharged all of its responsibilities in accordance 
with these terms of reference. The committee is pleased to present 
below its report in terms of section 77 of the PFMA for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2015.

2. Effectiveness of Internal and Financial Control

SACE has designed internal control over financial reporting to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with GRAP (generally recognised accounting 
practice). The Committee is of the opinion that there were no material 
breakdowns in internal control, including financial controls, business 
risk management and maintenance of effective material control 
systems during the financial year.
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3. Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Committee has:
•	 Confirmed the going concern as the basis of preparing   the 

interim and annual financial statements; 
•	 Ensured that the annual financial statements fairly  represent the 

financial position of the “SACE” as at the end of the financial year 
and the results of operations and cash flows for the financial year 
and considered the basis on which  “SACE” has  been determined 
to be a going concern; 

•	 Examined and reviewed the interim and annual financial 
statements prior to submission and approval by the Council; 

•	 Reviewed and discussed the external auditors’ audit report; and 
•	 Noted that there were no material reports or complaints received 

concerning accounting practices, internal audit, internal financial 
controls, content of annual financial statements, internal controls 
and related matters.

4. Internal Audit

The Audit Committee has:-
•	 Approved the one-year operational and three-year strategic 

internal audit plans and monitored Internal Audit’s adherence to 
its annual programme;

•	 Approved the annual risk assessment performed by internal 
audit during the financial year period;

•	 Received and reviewed reports from internal auditors regarding 
the effectiveness of the SACE  internal control environment, 
systems and processes;

•	 Reviewed and  considered  the adequacy and appropriateness of 
management’s corrective action plan as a result of audit findings; 

•	 Assessed the adequacy of the performance of the internal audit 
function; and

•	 Made appropriate recommendations to the Council regarding 
the corrective actions to be taken as a result of the audit findings.

5. External Audit 

During the year under review the Committee considered the 
following, amongst other matters: 
•	 Approved the external auditors’ terms of engagement, the audit 

plan and budgeted audit fees payable; 
•	 Reviewed the audit process and evaluated the effectiveness of 

the audit; 
•	 Obtained assurance from the external auditors that their 

independence was not impaired; and
•	 Confirmed that no reportable irregularities were identified 

and reported by the external auditors in terms of the Auditing 
Profession Act 26 of 2005. 

6. Conclusion

The Audit Committee noted with appreciation the progress made in :

(a)	 The implementation of the Continuing Professional Teacher 
Development management  system in terms of Basic Education 
Laws Amendment Act No. 15 of 2012;

(b)	 The attainment of the planned building reserve fund;
(c)	 The procurement of own administration building; and
(d)	  The initiative to establish the first two provincial offices.
The Committee is satisfied that it has complied with all its statutory 
and other responsibilities and having had regard to all material risks 
and factors that may impact on the integrity of the annual financial 
statements following review, we recommend the annual financial 
statements of SACE for the year ended 31 March 2015 for approval 
to the Council.

The Audit Committee further urges vigorous improvement of 
delivery levels on educator case management, external research and 
SACE general outreach. The Council is further urged to improve the 
revenue management system to be in compliance with Section 55(1) 
(b) of the Public Finance Management Act, and improve its Internal 
controls to comply with all other related legislation.

On behalf of the Audit Committee: 

_________________________

BJ Snayer

Chairperson: SACE Audit Committee

Date : 31 July 2015
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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Overview of HR matters  at the public entity

The HR unit is located under Corporate Services Department, which 
is supervised by the Chief Financial Officer. All HR related functions 
take place in this unit and are performed by the HR Officer, with 
the exception of leave administration which is recorded in Finance 
Department and verified by human resource function. The following 
are some of the activities and programmes that take place in HR.

•	 Review of HR policies;
•	 Employee relations support;
•	 Recruitment, selection and placement;
•	 Compensation and benefit matters;
•	 Facilitation of relevant workplace solutions in support of business;
•	 HR administrative support in respect of all employee related 

matters;
•	 Staff attendance and leave administration;
•	 Learning and development services; etc.

The Staffing Committee (STAFCO) is entrusted with oversight on all 
human resource related matters on behalf of the Council. Conditions 
of service matters and matters of mutual benefit are a subject of 
bargaining processes between the Employer (Council represented by 
STAFCO) and Employee (organized labour formation) parties.

Workforce planning framework and key strategies to 
attract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce

The Council has undertaken to pilot the establishment of provincial 
offices, commencing with an office in Durban, KwaZulu-Natal and 
another in Bloemfontein, Free State province. This, to improve on 
service delivery, SACE visibility and provincial presence and bring 
Council services closer to educators. A total of eight (8) positions 
were created with the establishment of provincial offices, to be 
headed by Provincial Head. The Council also went as far as placing 
advertisement in the local newspapers to attract a skilled workforce 
locally. 
 
The Council‘s drive to ensure more accessibility and visibility will 
bring with it the need to recruit more personnel and the increasing 
demands on the SACE ICT infrastructure is envisaged due to the 
enhanced access. 

Employee performance management framework 

The employee performance management framework has been 
successfully negotiated between the employer and employee 
parties. The administration has been given a go ahead to implement 
the framework.

Policy development:  
•	 Employee wellness programmes was undeway during the review 

period.
•	 A Policy to attract and retain critical skills was also in progress 

during this period. 

Highlight of achievements;

•	 The Induction Manual has been updated for new employees. The 
Manual plays a crucial role in familiarizing new recruits as well as 
already appointed employees with policies of the organization. 

•	 In addition, the Human Resources Policies Handbook was 
updated in line with approved Council policies. 

•	 There was a great improvement in vacancy filing turn-around 
time, as all vacant positions were filled within three (3) months of 
being vacated.  

•	 Regular meetings were held between Management and NEHAWU 
leadership to deal with issues of potential conflict and different 
employee complaints/issues have been addressed accordingly.

•	 All stop orders for medical aid allowances are paid centrally 
ensuring that all employees belong to medical aid schemes thus 
effectively enforcing Council policy.

Challenges faced by SACE in the area of Human 
Resources: 

•	 Understaffing in the Human Resources Unit;
•	 Inadequate attention to capacitating and developing employees 

in all Human Resource disciplines;
•	 System to manage Human Resources within SACE; and
•	 Lack of policies to attract and retain critical skills.

Future HR plans /goals

•	 Building capacity within Human Resource Unit;
•	 Implementing all general training programmes to enhance 

capacity; 
•	 Improve performance;
•	 Recruitment and retention of top talent;
•	 Work-life balance and wellness;
•	 Conducting employee satisfaction surveys;
•	 Development of a diverse and positive work environment.

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT 
STATISTICS 
The public entity must provide the following key information on 
human resources. All the financial amounts must agree to the 
amounts disclosed in the annual financial statements. Where 
considered appropriate, provide reasons for variances.

1. INTRODUCTION
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS (Continues)

Personnel Cost by programme/ activity/ objective

Programme/activ-
ity/objective

Total Expenditure 
for the entity 
(R’000)

Personnel Expendi-
ture (R’000)

Personnel exp. as 
a % of total  exp. 
(R’000)

No. of employees Average personnel 
cost per employee 
(R’000)

Total number of 
employees

61 433 27 957 45 88 318

Personnel cost by salary band

Level Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of personnel exp. to to-
tal personnel cost (R’000)

No. of employees Average personnel cost 
per employee (R’000)

Top Management 5 276 19% 04   1 319

Senior Management 5 344 19% 07 763

Professional qualified 6 677 24% 18 371

Skilled 3 747   114% 16 234

Semi-skilled 5 954 21% 37 160

Unskilled                     959                     3% 06 159

TOTAL   27 957                     100 88 318

Performance Rewards

Programme//activity/objec-
tive

Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure (R’000) % of performance rewards  to 
total personnel cost (R’000)

Top Management 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0

Training Costs

Programme//activ-
ity/objective

Personnel Expendi-
ture (R’000)

Training Expendi-
ture
(R’000)

Training Expen-
diture as a % of 
Personnel Cost

No. of employees 
trained

Avg training  cost 
per employee

Finance 3 342 13 0.39% 05 3

PD and Research 6 844 17 0.25% 04 4

Communications 2 799  46 1.64% 07 7

Executive 1 945 19 1.00% 06 3

Corporate Services 2 969 18 0.61% 05 4

Registrations 3 631                   2 0.06% 01 2



68

ANNUAL REPORT 2014  |  2015

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS (Continues)

Employment and vacancies

Programme/activ-
ity/objective

2013/2014 No. of 
Employees

2014/2015 
Approved Posts

No. of Employees 2014/2015 Vacan-
cies

% of vacancies

76 101 88 13 12.87%

Programme/activ-
ity/objective

2013/2014 No. of 
Employees

2014/2015 
Approved Posts

No. of Employees 2014/2015 Vacan-
cies

% of vacancies

Top Management 04 04 04 nil               0%

Senior Management 06 09 07 02 22.22%

Professional quali-
fied

10 20 18 02              10%

Skilled 13 21 18                   4 19.05%

Semi-skilled 38 40 37 03               7.50%

Unskilled 05 08 06 02               0.25%

TOTAL 76 101 88 13 12.87%
*  No vacancies at senior management positions.
*  Appointment made after 1 April 2015

Employment changes

Salary Band Employment at begin-
ning of period

Appointments Terminations Employment at end of 
the period

Top Management                        0 0                       0 0

Senior Management 01 0                       0 0

Professional qualified 09 0                       02 0

Skilled 04 0                       01 0

Semi-skilled 09 0                       03 0

Unskilled 0                       0 0

Total 23 0                       06 0
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS (Continues)

Reasons for staff leaving

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death                                          0                                         0

Resignation 05 83%

Dismissal 01 17%

Retirement                                          0                                        0

Ill health                                          0                                        0

Expiry of contract                                          0                                        0

Other                                          0                                        0

Total 06  100%

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 0

Final Written warning 0

Dismissal   01

Suspension Without Pay 0
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS (Continues)
Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

Explanations: Provide explanations for major variances between target and current and attempts made by the public entity to address the 

variances.

Levels MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Manage-
ment

01 0 0 0 01 0 0 0

Senior Man-
agement

05 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional 
qualified

07 0 02 0 0 0 01 0

Skilled 04 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 09 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 02 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 28 0 02 0 01 0 01 0

Levels FEMALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Manage-
ment

02 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Man-
agement

02 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional 
qualified

07 0 0 0 0 0 01 0

Skilled 09 0 01 0 01 0 01 0

Semi-skilled 28 0 0 0 0 01 0

Unskilled 03 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 51 0 01 0 01 0 03 0
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PART E: Financial Information
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General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile 				    South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities 				    Registration of educators, promotion of professional

								        development of educators and the establishment, 		

								        maintenance and protection of ethical and professional 		

								        standards for educators.

Registered office 							       Block 1

								        Crossway Office Park

								        240 Lenchen Avenue

								        Centurion

								        0046

Business address 							       Block 1

								        Crossway Office Park

								        240 Lenchen Avenue

								        Centurion

								        0046

Postal address 							       Private Bag X127

								        Centurion

								        0046

Bankers 								        Nedbank Limited

Auditors 								       Nexia SAB&T

								        Registered Auditors

								      



South African Council for Educators
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

73

ANNUAL REPORT 2014  |  2015

Council 								        Changes

Ms V. Hofmeester (Chairperson)

Mr S.T. Mchunu (Deputy chairperson) 						      Resigned on 16 March 2015

Mr M. Maphila

Mr W. Hlaise

Mr M. Moloi

Mr S. Mayongo

Mr T. Ledimo

Mr J. Rustin

Mr M. Cele

Mr R. Moroatshehla

Dr J.A. Breed

Mr G. Harrison

Dr H.L. Swanepoel

Mrs G.W. Bowles

Mr N.A. Mosia

Mr M.E. Maseko

Dr H.J. Deacon

Mrs M. Schoeman

Dr N. Nduna-Watson

Mr E.T. Rabotapi

Prof P. Mabunda

Mr J.W. Bester

Dr B. Fleisch

Ms L. Motshwane 								        Appointed on 26 June 2014

Ms N. Caluza 								        Appointed on 26 June 2014

Ms T. Kunene 								        Appointed on 26 June 2014

Mr M. Bomvana 								        Appointed on 01 March 2015

Mr K. Geza 								        Appointed on 01 August 2013

Mr H. Makhaga 								        Appointed on 19 November 2014

Mr E. Themba 								        Resigned on 02 February 2015

Mr R. Brijraj



South African Council for Educators
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

74

ANNUAL REPORT 2014  |  2015

Independent Auditor’s Report 75-77

Councillors’ Responsibilities and Approval 78

The Council Report 79

Statement of Financial Position 80

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 81

Statement of Changes in Equity 82

Statement of Cash Flows 83

Accounting Policies 84-91

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 92-99

The following supplementary information does not form part of the annual financial statements and is
unaudited:

Statement of Financial Performance 100-101

Level of assurance

These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance with the applicable requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999). 

Published 

31 July 2015

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the 
Councillors:

Index Page



South African Council for Educators
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

75

ANNUAL REPORT 2014  |  2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON SOUTH AFRICAN COUNCIL
FOR EDUCATORS

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

1.	 We have audited the financial statements of the South African Council for Educators (SACE) set out on pages 78 to 99, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and 
cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the annual financial statements

2.	 The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with South 
African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion 

6.	 In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the SACE as at 31 March 2015 and 
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of 
the PFMA.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

7.	 In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, we 
have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for the selected 
programmes presented in the annual report, compliance with legislation and internal control. We performed tests to identify reportable 
findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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Predetermined objectives

8.	 We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2015: 

•	 Programme 1: Registration of Educators on pages 20 to 22
•	 Programme 2: Professional Development of Educators on pages 28 to 52
•	 Programme 4: Professional Ethics on pages 22 to 28

9.	 We evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

10.	 We evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance with the 
National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned programmes. We 
further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and 
relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

11.	 We assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

12.	 We did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the following 
programmes:

•	 Programme 1: Registration of Educators on pages 20 to 22
•	 Programme 2: Professional Development of Educators on pages 28 to 52
•	 Programme 4: Professional Ethics on pages 22 to 28

Additional matters

13.	 We draw attention to the following matter. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of these matters:

Achievement of planned targets

14.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 20 to 52 for information on the achievement of the planned targets for the year.

Compliance with legislation

15.	 We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with legislation regarding financial matters, financial 
management and other related matters. Our findings on material compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 
general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statements

16.	 The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework as 
required by section 55(1) (b) of the Public Finance Management Act. Material misstatements of provision, trade and other receivables 
identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON SOUTH AFRICAN COUNCIL
FOR EDUCATORS (Continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON SOUTH AFRICAN COUNCIL
FOR EDUCATORS (Continued)

Procurement and Contract Management

17.	 Quotations were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether they are employed by the state or connected to any 
person employed by the state, which is prescribed in order to comply with Treasury regulation 16A8.3.

Internal control

18.	 We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance with 
legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for our opinion, 
the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report. 

Leadership

19.	 Although the leadership implemented controls to ensure compliance with laws, regulations and internally designed policies and 
procedures, non-compliance issues were noted and material misstatements were identified and corrected. 

Financial and performance management

20.	Management did not adequately monitor adherence with the requirements of Treasury Regulations for deviations from Supply Chain 
Management processes. 

21.	Management did not adequately review the financial statements and the annual performance report for completeness and accuracy prior 
to its submission for audit purposes. Misstatements identified were subsequently corrected by management

Nexia SAB&T

Per: P. Mkumbuzi

Director

Registered auditor

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON SOUTH AFRICAN COUNCIL
FOR EDUCATORS (Continued)
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The council is required in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) to maintain adequate accounting records and is 
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their 
responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year 
and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with South African Statements of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP). The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements. 

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(SA Standards of GRAP) and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgements and estimates. 

The councillors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the entity and 
places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the councillors to meet these responsibilities, the 
council sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the 
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties 
to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The 
focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While 
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

The councillors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any 
system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

 The council has reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2016 and, in light of this review and the current financial 
position, they are satisfied that the entity has or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. 

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the entity’s annual financial statements. The annual financial 
statements have been examined by the entity’s external auditors and their report is presented on pages 75 to 77. 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 79 to 101, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
council on 31 July 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

COUNCILLORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

Ms V. Hofmeester (Chairperson) R. Brijraj - Chief Executive Officer
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R. Brijraj - Chief Executive Officer

The council has pleasure in submitting its report on the annual financial statements of South African Council for Educators for the year ended
31 March 2015.

1. Nature of business

South African Council for Educators has been incorporated in terms of the South African Council for Educators Act (Act 31 of 2000). The
principal responsibility of the South African Council for Educators as set out in this Act are as follows:

•	 to provide for the registration of educators
•	 to promote the professional development of educators; and
•	 to set, maintain and protect the ethical and professional standards for educators.

2. Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999). The accounting policies have
been applied consistently compared to the prior year.

Net surplus of the entity was R 11,801,220 (2014: R14,342,774).

3. Going concern

The council believes that the entity has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the
annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The council has satisfied itself that the entity is in a sound  financial 
position and that it has access to sufficient facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The council is not aware of any new material 
changes that may adversely impact the entity. The council is also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or
regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the entity.

4. Events after the reporting period

The council is not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report, not otherwise dealt 
with in the annual financial statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the entity or the results of its operations.

5. Property, plant and equipment

At 31 March 2015 the entity’s investment in property, plant and equipment amounted to R1,947,387 (2014: R 2,417,806), of which R440,139
(2014: R 672,735) was added in the current year through additions.

The Council Report
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Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 1,947,387 2,417,806

Intangible assets 4 601,750 1,095,281

2,549,137 3,513,087

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 5 8,066,640 6,972,076

Cash and cash equivalents 6 81,415,716 71,093,226

89,482,356 78,065,302

Total Assets 92,031,493 81,578,389

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Accumulated surplus 21,700,651 9,899,431

Building reserve fund 63,702,019 63,702,019

85,402,670 73,601,450

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 7 4,192,758 6,601,079

Provisions 8 2,436,065 1,375,860

6,628,823 7,976,939

Total Equity and Liabilities 92,031,493 81,578,389

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015
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Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Continuing operations

Revenue 58,108,346 55,357,384

Government grant 9 10,530,847 10,385,063

Other income 258,547 415,386

Operating expenses (61,433,019) (53,165,653)

Operating surplus 10 7,464,721 12,992,180

Investment revenue 11 4,336,499 2,850,594

Surplus for the year 11,801,220 15,842,774

Loss on sale of non-current assets held for sale - (1,500,000)

Surplus for the year 11,801,220 14,342,774

Attributable to owner’s of the controlling entity - -

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Figures in Rand Building

reserve fund
Accumulated

surplus
Total equity

Balance at 01 April 2013 41,084,806 18,173,870 59,258,676

Total comprehensive surplus for the year - 14,342,774 14,342,774

Transfer to building reserve fund 22,617,213 (22,617,213) -

Balance at 01 April 2014 63,702,019 9,899,431 73,601,450

Total comprehensive surplus for the year - 11,801,220 11,801,220

Balance at 31 March 2015 63,702,019 21,700,651 85,402,670
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Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 57,516,791 54,989,876

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (51,031,892) (44,255,561)

Cash generated from operations 14 6,484,899 10,734,315

Interest income 4,336,499 2,850,594

Net cash from operating activities 10,821,398 13,584,909

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (440,139) (672,735)

Sale of property, plant and equipment 69,737 -

Proceeds on sale of investment property - 9,000,000

Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (128,506) (380,853)

Net cash from investing activities (498,908) 7,946,412

Total cash movement for the year 10,322,490 21,531,321

Cash at the beginning of the year 71,093,226 49,561,905

Total cash at end of the year 6 81,415,716 71,093,226

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Presentation of annual financial statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (SA Standards of GRAP), issued by the accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 55 of the Public Finance Management 
Act (Act 1 of 1999). 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accural basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention, 
unless specifically stated otherwise.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset, except where offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.

The accounting policies are applied consistently with those used to present the previous year’s financial statements.

1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are prepared in South African Rand and are not rounded off.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented 
in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the 
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. 
Significant judgements include:

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use calcul 
tions and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. 

It is reasonably possible that the key assumptions may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material 
adjustment to the carrying value of intangible and tangible assets.

The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not 
be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets 
and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each 
group of assets.

Trade receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss 
should be recorded in profit or loss, the entity makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in 
the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

Membership fees

The South African Council for Educators maintains a database of registered members and removes members from the database only upon 
request of the individual member. Inactive members comprise deceased, retired and terminated members while all other members are 
categorised as active members. 

Membership fees are received from the Provincial and National Departments of Education for members employed by them. Certain private 
schools also deduct levies from their employees and pay the amounts deducted to the South African Council for Educators.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continues)

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

For educators that have not paid the membership levies in full, it is not possible to assess whether this is as a result of deliberate non-payment 
or due to unemployment. In the absence of forthcoming information from the members themselves, a reliable estimate of educators that 
should have paid levies during the year cannot be made and consequently, revenue is recognised as it is received.

Depreciation

During each financial year, management reviews the assets within property, plant and equipment to assess whether the useful lives and 
residual values applicable to each asset are appropriate.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation 
of borrowing costs on qualifying assets and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If the replacement cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the recognition 
criteria are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the 
previous inspection are derecognised.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost, less estimated value over the useful lives of items of property, 
plant and equipment, which have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Motor vehicles Straight line 5 years

Office equipment Straight line 6 to 10 years

IT equipment Straight line 3 to 7 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line 5 to 6 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the expectations differ 
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is 
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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1.4 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:

•	 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
•	 the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal
project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

•	 it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
•	 there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
•	 there is an ability to use or sell it.
•	 it will generate probable future economic benefits.
•	 there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
•	 the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Development costs previously recognised 
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the 
period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they 
are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets 
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end. Reassessing the useful life of an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset 
is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible 
assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life

Registration database - internally generated 5 years

Computer software, internally generated 5 years

Computer software, other 5 years

1.5 Financial instruments

Classification

The entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:

Loans and receivables

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition. 
Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis for financial assets which are not designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continues)
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1.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

The entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity 
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not determinable, which are 
measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the 
instrument.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the entity assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to determine whether there 
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default of 
payments are all considered indicators of impairment. 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment 
is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating 
expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at cost.

Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset 
is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and 
default or delinquency in payments (more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or 
loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts 
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), if not 
they are presented as non-current laibilities.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continues)
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1.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently 
recorded at fair value.

1.6 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

•	 the council has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
•	 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
	 obligation; and
•	 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts 
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not discounted. Any 
contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.8 Impairment of assets

The entity assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also:
•	 tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparingits 

carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed during the annual period and at the same time every 
period.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is 
determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. If the recoverable 
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is 
an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continues)
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recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount 
of the assets of the unit in the following order:

1.8 Impairment of assets (continued)

•	 first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and
•	 then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets other
than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.9 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick 
leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not 
discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, 
in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised 
as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

1.10 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

•	 the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
•	 the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that they are intended to 
compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate 
financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the statement of financial position by 
setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the profit or loss (separately).

Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred credit set up in respect of the grant. To the extent 
that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred credit exists, the repayment is recognised immediately as an 
expense.

Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing the deferred income balance 
by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that would have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of 
the grant is recognised immediately as an expense.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continues)

1.11 Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the rendering of services in the normal course of business. 
Revenue is recognised as follows:

Membership and registration fees

Membership and registration fees are recognised when the invoice is issued.

1.12 Commitments

Commitments are contractual agreements with the suppliers of goods and services where delivery has not taken place. Commitments are 
disclosed in the notes to annual financial statements at the nominal value of the contractual agreements.

1.13 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African Government. 
As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national/
provincial/local sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged with 
the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, 
that member of management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties where the transactions are not concluded within normal operating procedures or on terms that are not 
no more or no less favourable than the terms it would use to conclude transactions with another entity or person are disclosed.

1.14 Financial Risk Management

1.14.1 Financial Risks

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and cashflow and fair value interest risk), 
credit risk and liquidity risk. The entity’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 
to minimise potential adverse effects on the entity’s financial performance.

1.14.1.1 Market Risk

a) Currency Risk

The entity had no foreign currency transactions during the year.

b) Cash flow and fair-value interest rate risk

The entity’s interest rate risk arises from current investments which earn interest income.
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1.14 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

1.14.1.2 Credit Risk

The entity has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that the granting of credit is adequately controlled.

1.14.1.3 Liquidity Risk

The entity makes use of a mix of gorvernment grants and existing resources to fund its operations and expansions. Key ratios include debt: 
equity, interest cover and debt repayment period.

1.14.1.4 Capital Risk Management

For the purposes of capital management, capital includes accumulated surplus and other reserves. The capital mix is reviewed by the entity 
when substantial changes occur in the capital requirements of the entity. These requirements could be for substantial additions to fixed assets 
or intangible assets. Management will regularly review the liquidity risk of the entity and ensure sufficient data is available to alter the capital 
mix if required.

1.14.2 Fair Value Estimation

The carrying value less provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial 
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated at their settlement values.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continues)
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 In July 2014 the minister of Finance prescribed the the application of the following Standards of GRAP for financial years beginning on or after 01 

January 2015 for the types of auditees indicated:

Schedule 3A and 3C public entities and constitutional institutions

•	 GRAP 18: Segment reporting
•	 GRAP 105: Transfer of funtions between entities under common control
•	 GRAP 106: Transfer of functions between entities not under common control
•	 GRAP 107: Mergers

2.2. The Accounting Standards Boards (ASB) has issued the following additional Standards of GRAP for which effective dates have not yet been gazetted by 

the minister of Finance:

•	 GRAP 20: Related party disclosure
•	 GRAP 32: Service concession agreements: Grantor
•	 GRAP 108: Statutory receivables
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Motor vehicles 138,000 (80,500) 57,500 138,000 (52,900) 85,100

Office equipment 2,646,261 (1,321,083) 1,325,178 2,521,765 (1,177,672) 1,344,093

IT equipment 3,557,365 (3,078,835) 478,530 3,381,197 (2,760,939) 620,258

Leasehold improvements 742,854 (656,675) 86,179 742,854 (374,499) 368,355

Total 7,084,480 (5,137,093) 1,947,387 6,783,816 (4,366,010) 2,417,806

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Motor vehicles 85,100 - - (27,600) 57,500

Office equipment 1,344,093 263,971 (69,737) (213,149) 1,325,178

IT equipment 620,258 176,168 - (317,895) 478,530

Leasehold improvements 368,355 - - (282,175) 86,179

2,417,806 440,139 (69,737) (840,819) 1,947,387

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Opening
balance

Additions Depreciation Total

Motor vehicles 112,700 - (27,600) 85,100

Office equipment 1,366,614 174,601 (197,122) 1,344,093

IT equipment 474,138 423,112 (276,992) 620,258

Leasehold improvements 545,526 75,022 (252,193) 368,355

2,498,978 672,735 (753,907) 2,417,806

4. Intangible assets

2015 2014

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

CPTD database - internally
generated

2,806,953 (2,806,953) - 2,806,953 (2,526,258) 280,695

Registration database,
internally generated

1,392,394 (1,133,543) 258,851 1,392,394 (931,115) 461,279

Computer software, other 1,050,108 (707,209) 342,899 921,602 (568,295) 353,307

Total 5,249,455 (4,647,705) 601,750 5,120,949 (4,025,668) 1,095,281
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

CPTD database - internally
generated

280,695 - (280,695) -

Registration database,
internally generated

461,279 - (202,428) 258,851

Computer software, other 353,307 128,506 (138,914) 342,899

Total 1,095,281 128,506 (622,037) 601,750

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

CPTD database - internally
generated

842,085 - (561,390) 280,695

Registration database,
internally generated

509,987 195,052 (243,760) 461,279

Computer software, other 296,807 185,801 (129,301) 353,307

Total 1,648,879 380,853 (934,451) 1,095,281

5. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 1,171,839 580,284

Deposits 6,478,716 6,084,472

Other receivables - 52,385

Prepayments 17,419 -

Staff loans 398,666 254,935

8,066,640 6,972,076

Trade receivables are shown after an impairment allowance of R 537,168 (2014: R 267,874)

6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 3,530 967

Bank balances 13,778,576 17,261,451

Short-term deposits 67,633,610 53,830,808

81,415,716 71,093,226
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Trade and other payables

Trade payables 1,132,618 1,782,158

Amounts received in advance 250,587 48,104

Deferred government grant 2,657,363 4,688,209

Other payables 152,190 82,608

4,192,758 6,601,079

8. Provisions

Reconciliation of intangibleprovisions- 2015

Opening
balance

Additions Utilised during the 
year

Total

Provision for bonus 230,052 80,184 - 310,236

Provision for leave pay 1,145,808 2,394,988 (1,414,967) 2,125,829

1,375,860 2,475,172 (1,414,967) 2,436,065

Reconciliation of intangible Provisions - 2014

Opening
balance

Additions Utilised during the 
year

Total

Provision for bonus 223,485 6,567 - 230,052

Provision for leave pay 1,466,818 339,617 (660,627) 1,145,808

1,690,303 346,184 (660,627) 1,375,860

Employees entitlement to annual leave is recognised when it accrues. A provision is made 
on the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees 
up to the amount of the obligation. 

Employees entitlement to performance bonus is recognised when the Council has 
approved a percentage of the annual package as bonus for the year. The provision 
becomes actual after being qualified by the results of the performance measurement tool 
applied.

9. Revenue

Membership fees 49,735,278 50,121,782

Registration fees 6,314,402 4,189,892

Reprinted certificates 2,058,666 1,045,710

58,108,346 55,357,384
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Operating surplus

Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating lease charges

Premises

•	 Contractual amounts 7,516,063 6,528,567

Loss on sale of non-current assets held for sale - 1,500,000

Amortisation on intangible assets 622,037 934,451

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 840,819 753,907

Employee costs 27,968,727 24,429,001

11. Investment revenue

Interest revenue

Bank 4,075,732 2,547,842

Other 260,767 302,752

4,336,499 2,850,594

12. Taxation

No provision has been made for 2015 tax as the entity is exempt from tax in terms of 
Section 10(1)(i)(cA)(i)(bb) of the Income Tax (Act No 58 of 1962).

13. Auditors’ remuneration

Fees 649,458 524,885

14. Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year 11,801,220 14,342,774

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,462,856 1,688,359

Loss on sale of non-current assets - 1,500,000

Interest received (4,336,499) (2,850,594)

Movements in provisions 1,060,205 (314,443)

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables (1,094,564) (408,639)

Trade and other payables (2,408,319) (3,223,142)

6,484,899 10,734,315
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15. Commitments

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

Within one year 1,667,761 6,443,487

Thereafter 223,072 1,644,825

1,890,833 8,088,312

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for certain of its office 
properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and rentals are fixed 
for an average of three years. No contingent rent is payable.

16. Executive management remuneration

2015 Basic Bonus Fringe
benefit

Other Total

R. Brijraj 955,602 - 162,452 472,831 1,590,885

M. Mapindani 729,242 60,771 123,971 510,545 1,424,529

M. Dipholo 703,990 58,666 119,678 289,197 1,171,531

2,388,834 119,437 406,101 1,272,573 4,186,945

2014 Basic Bonus Fringe
benefit

Other Total

R. Brijraj 955,602 18,326 609,071 1,785 1,545,465

M. Mapindani 691,964 71,500 401,843 368,024 1,533,331

M. Dipholo 672,145 69,455 392,040 1,785 1,135,425

2,280,392 159,281 1,402,954 371,594 4,214,221

17. Related parties

   Related party balances 

All national departments of government are regarded to be related parties in 
accordance with Circular 4 of 2006: Guidance in terms of “State Controlled Entities” in 
the context of IAS 24 (AC 126) - Related Parties, issued by the South African Institute of 
Chartered Accountants. No transaction is implicated simply by the nature or existance 
of relationships between these entities, however the balances below were recorded 
relating to transactions with related parties as defined above:

Amounts owing from related parties

South African Post Office 1,092,246 394,427

Amounts owing to related parties

State Information Technology Agency Proprietary Limited - 19,600

South African Post Office 2,922 1,562

Telkom SA Limited 13,856 2,775

16,778 23,937
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
18. Categories of financial instruments

Note(s) Debt
instruments
at amortised

cost

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Leases Equity and
non financial

assets and
liabilities

Total

Categories of financial instruments - 2015

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 - - - 1,947,387 1,947,387

Intangible assets 4 - - - 601,750 601,750

- - - 2,549,137 2,549,137

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 5 8,049,221 - - 17,419 8,066,640

Cash and cash equivalents 6 81,415,716 - - - 81,415,716

89,464,937 - - 17,419 89,482,356

Total Assets 89,464,937 - - 2,566,556 92,031,493

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Building reserve fund - - - 63,702,019 63,702,019

Accumulated surplus - - - 21,700,651 21,700,651

- - - 85,402,670 85,402,670

Total Equity - - - 85,402,670 85,402,670

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 7 - 4,076,067 116,691 - 4,192,758

Provisions 8 - - - 2,436,065 2,436,065

- 4,076,067 116,691 2,436,065 6,628,823

Total Liabilities - 4,076,067 116,691 2,436,065 6,628,823

Total Equity and Liabilities - 4,076,067 116,691 87,838,735 92,031,493
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
18. Categories of financial instruments (c0ntinued)

Note(s) Debt
instruments
at amortised

cost

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Leases Equity and
non financial

assets and
liabilities

Total

Categories of financial instruments - 2014

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 - - - 2,417,806 2,417,806

Intangible assets 4 - - - 1,095,281 1,095,281

- - - 3,513,087 3,513,087

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 5 6,972,076 - - - 6,972,076

Cash and cash equivalents 6 71,093,226 - - - 71,093,226

78,065,302 - - - 78,065,302

Total Assets 78,065,302 - - 3,513,087 81,578,389

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Building reserve fund - - - 63,702,019 63,702,019

Accumulated surplus - - - 9,899,431 9,899,431

- - - 73,601,450 73,601,450

Total Equity - - - 73,601,450 73,601,450

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 7 - 6,601,079 - 6,601,079

Provisions 8 - - - 1,375,860 1,375,860

- 6,601,079 - 1,375,860 7,976,939

Total Liabilities - 6,601,079 - 1,375,860 7,976,939

Total Equity and Liabilities - 6,601,079 - 74,977,310 81,578,389
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Statement of financial performance
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Revenue

Membership fees 49,735,278 50,121,782

Registration fees 6,314,402 4,189,892

Reprinted certificates 2,058,666 1,045,710

9 58,108,346 55,357,384

Other income

Government grant 10,530,846 10,385,063

Sundry income 258,548 415,386

Interest received 11 4,336,499 2,850,594

15,125,893 13,651,043

Expenses (Refer to page 30) (61,433,019) (53,165,653)

Surplus for the year 10 11,801,220 15,842,774

Loss on non-current assets held for sale - (1,500,000)

Surplus for the year 11,801,220 14,342,774
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Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Operating expenses

Advertising (243,328) (107,448)

Auditors remuneration 13 (649,458) (524,885)

Bad debts (260,294) -

Bank charges (145,976) (105,221)

Cleaning (78,609) (62,576)

Code of conduct (2,093,924) (665,796)

Computer expenses (89,239) -

Consulting fees (519,526) (530,834)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments (1,462,856) (1,688,358)

Employee costs (27,968,727) (24,429,001)

Fines and penalties (71) -

Hire (122,642) (148,973)

Insurance (282,633) (293,217)

Lease rentals on operating lease (7,516,063) (6,528,567)

Leasehold expenses (144,921) (63,621)

Legal expenses (64,856) (23,075)

Motor vehicle expenses (27,922) (23,180)

Postage (20,687) (40,877)

Printing and stationary (375,778) (410,237)

Professional development (10,530,846) (10,385,063)

Publicity and  communications (1,316,560) (545,707)

Registration costs (393,505) (295,659)

Repairs and Maintenance (221,407) (63,145)

Research (669,859) (73,115)

Security (27,046) (426,312)

Staff Welfare (113,228) (155,568)

Subscriptions (421,145) (370,168)

Telephone and Fax (619,471) (788,840)

Training (125,170) (69,838)

Travel - local (3,730,365) (2,618,483)

Utilities (1,196,907) (1,727,889)

(61,433,019) (53,165,653)

Statement of financial performance
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